FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
2 SKYLINE, 10th FLOOR

5203 LEESBURG PIKE JUN 25 m

FALLS CHURCH, VIRGINIA 22041

SECRETARY OF LABCR, : Gvil Penalty Proceeding
M NE SAFETY ANDHEALTH :
ADM NI STRATI ON  ( MSHA) , 1 Docket Nos.  Assessnment Control Nos.
Petitioner :
: ~ KENT 80-289 15-05179- 03010
V. : KENT 80-290 15-05179- 03012
! KENT 30- 324 15-05179- 03013
Bl G THREE COAL COVPANY, : KENT 80- 325 15-05179- 03014
Respondent : KENT 80- 329 15-05179- 03015
: No. 1 Mne
DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Darryl A Stewart, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,
U S. Departnent of Labor, for Petitioner;
Charles E. Lowe, Esq., Lowe,'Lowe & Stanper,
Pi keville, Kentucky, for Respondent.

Baf or e: Adm ni strative Law Judge Steffey

Pursuant to a notice of hearing dated Novenber 17, 1980, as amended
January 13, 1981, a hearing in the above-entitled proceeding was held in
Pikeville, Kentucky, on March 5, 1981, under section 105(d) of the Federal
Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C § 315(d).

The issues in civil penalty cases are whether violations of the nanda-
tory health and safety standards occurred and, if so, what civil penalties
shoul d be assessed, based on the six criteria set forth in section 110(i)
of the Act.

After the hearing had been convened in this proceeding, an inspector
testified in support of CGtation No. 703127 which alleged that respondent
had violated 30 C.F.R. § 75.301 because the volume of air in the |ast open
crosscut was |ess than the mninum quantity of 9,000 cubic feet per ninute
required by section 75.301. The inspector stated that the air velocity was
.80 low that it would not turn the blades on his anemoneter (Tr. 10-12). The
inspector testified that he had gone to respondent's No. 1 Mne to investigate
a roof-fall accident. While the inspector was in the nmine, he wote Gtation
No. 703127, but the inspector stated that the low air velocity in the |ast
open crosscut had no bearing on the cause of the accident and that the cita-
tion should be considered as a routine citation witten as if the inspector
had been conducting a "spot" inspection, that is, an inspection other than
the four regular inspections required each year by section 103(a) of the Act.

The inspector did not consider the violation to be serious because no
coal was being produced on the day the citation was witten (Tr. 13-14).
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The inspector stated that the anenoneter would not turn if the air velocity
was | ess than 50 feet per minute. He concluded that the air velocity was
sonmewhere between 0 and 50 feet per nminute. He stated that other persons
invol ved in investigating the accident were in the |ast open crosscut and
that no one had any difficulty in breathing (Tr. 22-23). The inspector said
that the cause of the air deficiency was the fact that no curtain had been
hung in the second open crosscut fromthe face and the lack of a curtain
caused the air to be coursed fromthe second open crosscut to the return
before being directed into the last open crosscut (Tr. 24).

The inspector first based his belief that the violation was associ at ed
with ordinary negligence by stating that the preshift exam ner should have
noticed the lack of air in the |ast open crosscut and shoul d have reported
it to mne managenent, but the inspector retracted that claimafter he
acknow edged that the mine had been closed by an order witten under section
103(k) of the Act so that an investigation of the accident coul d be made.
Since no one could have nade a preshift exam nation while the mne was cl osed,
the inspector was unable to say exactly how the operator could have known
that a curtain had not been installed in the last open crosscut (Tr. 18). The
inspector testified that the violation had beenicorrected in less time than
he had allowed for abatenent in his citation (Tr. 15).

Larry Ratliff, who is a half owner of Big Three Coal Conpany, clained
that the curtain in the second open crosscut coul d have been knocked down
between the occurrence of the accident on September 18, 1979, and the tine
that the inspector went into the mne the next day (Tr. 32). Although the
inspector testified that occurrence of the accident had no bearing on the
lack of a curtain in the second open crosscut, there is no real certainty
as to whether the curtain had never been erected at all, or had been in-
stalled during the previous production shift and had been torn down after
the accident occurred

The evidence supports a finding that a violation of section 75.301
occurred. As to the criteria of gravity and negligence, the evidence sup-
ports a finding that the violation was nonserious and that it was associated
with a | ow degree of negligence in view of the fact that neither the inspec-
tor nor the owner could say for certain that the curtain had been in place
during the tine that coal had |ast been produced in the mne

After the parties had presented evidence with respect to the first vio-
lation alleged in this proceeding, Mr, Larry Ratliff, who is half owner of
Big Three Coal Conpany, presented some detailed testinmony bearing on the
criteria of the size of respondent's business and whet her the paynent of
penal ties would cause respondent to discontinue in business. M. Ratliff
testified that respondent had opened its mne in August 1979 and had cl osed
the mne on June 15, 1980, after occurrence of % massive roof fall which
covered up respondent's continuous-m ning machine, as well as a feeder and
a shuttle car which respondent had been leasing fromlsland Creek Coa
Conpany (Tr. 39).
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Before respondent closed its mne, it had enployed approxi mately 22
mners and had produced about.150 tons of coal per day. Respondent was
under contract to produce the coal for Island Creek Coal Company. |Island
Creek paid respondent $19.25 per ton, less $4.80 per ton for such services
as renoval of inmpurities fromthe coal, and maintenance of a reclamation
fund, providing electric power, and,use of bathhouse facilities. Respondent
al so had to pay all l|abor costs associated w th producing coal and pay for
haul ing the coal to Island Creek's prepearation plant (Tr. 37-39).

M. Ratliff, in addition to having a-50-percent interest 4in Big Three
Coal Conpany, also had a half interest in Vanhoose Coal Conpany. The Vanhoose
Conpany stopped mning coal on April 4, 1980, and the 265 Lee Norse continuous-
m ni ng machi ne being used by the Vanhoose Conpany was transferred to Big
Three's Mne and Big Three assumed the paynents on the Lee Norse which
Vanhoose Company had been making prior to its discontinuance in business
(Tr. 47). It was not possible to recover the continuous-m ning nmachine
after the nassive roof fall occurred in respondent's mne. Respondent was
al so unable to recover a feeder and a shuttle car which were being | eased
fromlIsland Creek. M. Ratliff testified that the cost of the tinbers and
ot her equi pnent required for recovering the equi pment was estinmated to be
$387, 000, whereas the original cost of the Lee Norse was $278,000. Respon-
dent's insurance on the Lee Norse was sufficient to pay the remaining anmunt
due on it as well as $49,000 in debts which respondent owed to Ingersol
Rand (Tr. 44; 46-47; 50).

Wien Island Creek found that M. Ratliff was unable to recover its feeder
and shuttle car which had been covered up by the roof fall, Island Creek
cancelled its contract with Big Three Coal Conpany and M. Ratliff was unable
to reopen the Big Trree Mne at a different location.” M. Ratliff's counse
mailed to ne on May .3, 1981, sone financial data and a copy of the only
incone tax return which Big Three has filed. The return covers the entire
period that Big Three was in business. According to the tax return, Big Three
incurred a net |oss of $96,016.79. Qher data submitted by respondent show
that it has no assets to pay existing obligations anounting to $109,931.79.

Respondent's counsel in this proceeding stated at the hearing that re-
spondent planned to file a bankruptcy petition within a week or 10 days after
the hearing was held on March 5, 1981 (Tr. 56). In a letter to ne dated
May 25, 1981, respondent's counsel stated that respondent still plans to
file a bankruptcy petition in the near future.

M. Ratliff now has no interest in any active coal mne (Tr. 35). He is
now running a hardware store (Tr. 30) and M. Ratliff does not plan to mne
coal at any time in the future. His position as to the business of producing
coal was given at the hearing (Tr. 52):

| would like to state it for the record, ny feelings right
to this day, if there is never another [unp of coal mned unti
| have got any part in it, they will never mne another |unp
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Wien the evidence summarized above was obtained at the hearing, | asked
M. Ratliff why he thought that any worthwhile good woul d be acconplished by
havi ng inspectors testify as to the remaining 25 violations involved in this
consol i dated proceeding in view of the fact that his only defense was inabil-
ity to pay penalties. H's reply to that question was (Tr. 53)

VeIl ny feeling is Big Three has no assets. W have got
nothing that anybody can get. If Big Three had anything we would
be nore than happy to sell it and pay these debts. But we just don't
have anyt hi ng.

The evidence in this proceeding shows that respondent did not request
a hearing because it w shes to contest whether the violations occurred, but
sinply wanted to present evidence to show that respondent woul d be unable
to pay penalties even if it agreed to a settlement under which it would pay
a portion of the anmounts proposed by the Assessnment Office. A though respon-
dent has not yet filed a petition in bankruptcy, there is no reason to doubt
its statement that it is planning to do so. If large penalties were to be
assessed, the Department of Labor could collect themonly by filing as a
creditor in the bankruptcy proceedi ng because respondent's evi dence indi-
cates that it has no assets which could be seized and sold in order to
collect the penalties. Even if some assets could be discovered in the bank-
ruptcy proceeding, the collection of large civil penalties would reduce the
amount which other creditors could obtain. Since M. Ratliff is out of the
coal business and does not intend to resume the business of producing coal,
assessnent of |arge penalties would have no deterrent effect because he
woul d not personally be paying the penalties fromany assets which he has
not already lost fromhis venture into the coal business.

|. stated at the hearing that | would review the citations and order
which are the subject of the five Proposals for Assessment of Civil Penalty
and woul d reduce the penalties "by a considerable amount” in light of the
fact that respondent is out of business and has no assets from which penal -
ties can be paid (Tr. 56). If inspectors had been called to testify as to
each of the 25 alleged violations as to which no testinony was taken, a
period of about 2 hearing days would have been required. Even if all of
the violations had been shown to have been very serious and to have been
acconpanied with gross negligence, | would still have felt obligated to
assess relatively small penalties because a small conpany is involved and
because it is no longer in business and has no assets fromwhich penalties
can be paid. Therefore, the remaining portion of this decision will consist
of a brief reviewof the total violations alleged in this proceeding and a
tabulation listing the alleged violations and the anount of the penalty
assessed for each violation, based on the six criteria

Docket No. RENT 80-289

The first violation alleged by the Proposal for Assessnent of G vi
Penalty filed in Docket No. KENT 80-289 was the violation of section 75.301
whi ch was the subject of considerable testimony in this proceeding, as sum
marized in the first part of this decision. | have already found that the
violation was nonserious in the circunstances and that there was a | ow
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degree of negligence. The violation.was abated in less time than the in-
spector provided, and after it was abated, respondent was supplying a
volune of 34,000 cubic feet per mnute to the |last open crosscut. Those
facts support a finding that respondent denonstrated better than a norma
effort to achieve conpliance and that the penalty otherw se assessabl e
shoul d be reduced by a small anount under the criterion of good-faith abate-
nent. Respondent's witness stated that respondent had not previously been
cited for a violation of section 75.301. The foregoing findings, pl us

addi tional considerations as to respondent's small size, and-adverse finan-
cial condition, warrant assessment of a civil penalty of $10 for the viola-
tion of section 75.301 alleged in Gtation No. 708127

No testinony was received with respect to the remaining three violations
al leged in Docket No. KENT 80-289. Citation No. 708128 alleged a violation
of section 75.1702 because the intake air escapeway was not properly sep-
arated fromthe conveyor belt entry because of respondent's failure to
erect a stopping outby the belt tailpiece. The Assessment COffice consid-
ered that the violation resulted from ordinary negligence, that it was very
serious; and proposed a penalty of $114. The Assessment Office did not
reduce the '"penalty under the criterion of good-faith abatement even though
the violation was abated in less tine than provided.for by the inspector.
The Assessment O fice shows assignment of no penalty points under the cri-
terion of history of previous violations for any of the violations alleged
in Docket No. KENT 80-289 because all of the violations Were witten in
September 1979 shortly after respondent commenced producing coal

Ctation No. 707945 alleged a violation of section 75.200 because
respondent failed to install reflectors at the last row of roof supports.
The Assessment O fice considered that the violation was the result of ordi-
nary negligence, that it was noderately serious, and proposed a penalty of
$44.  The Assessment Office did not reduce the penalty under the criterion
of good-faith abatenent although respondent abated the violation in 15 mnutes
which was 10 mnutes less than-the tine given by the inspector.

Citation No. 707946 alleged a violation of section 75.604(a) because a
permanent type splice in the trailing cable to the coal drill was not mech-
anically strong and | acked adequate electrical conductivity and flexibility.
The Assessment Office considered that the violation was the result of ordi-
nary negligence, that it was noderately serious, and proposed a penalty of
$66. Abatement was performed within the 30 nminutes provided for by the
I nspector.

| find that the three violations, as to which no testinmony was received
occurred. The penalties proposed by the Assessnent Office are a litttle on
the high side for failure to give respondent due credit for rapid abatenent.
O course, the Assessnent Office had no evidence as to respondent's financia
condition. M order will hereinafter show reductions in the total penalties
of $290 proposed' by the Assessment Office to a total of $122, or approxi mately
50 percent, based on the fact that respondent is'out of business and has no
assets fromwhich penalties can be collected. O course, the penalty of $10
assessed for the violation of section 75.301 is based on evidence received
at the hearing and does not have to be conpared to the penalty proposed by
the Assessnment Office.

1o,
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Docket No. KENT 80-290

The Proposal for Assessment of Gvil Penalty filed in Docket No. KENT
80-290 al l eged occurrence of five violations. Gtation No. 725312 all eged
a violation of section 77.701 because respondent had failed to provide a
frane ground for a-starter box. Citation No. 725313 alleged a violation
of section 77.506 because respondent had used a solid wire, instead of a
fuse, for the wire supplying power to the office and supply trailer.
Ctation No. 725314 alleged a violation of section 75.902 because a fail-
safe ground check nmonitoring circuit had not been provided for the power
circuit for the feeder on the conveyor bedt. Citation No. 725315 alleged
a violation of section 75.1722 because respondent had failed to provide a
protective guard for the conveyor drive chain on the feeder. G tation No.
725316 all eged a violation of section 75.518 because respondent had used
a solid wire, in lieu of a fuse, for the wire providing power to the contro
transformer. The Assessment Office found that all of the violations re-

-sulted from ordinary negligence and found that the use of solid wires, in-
stead of fuses, was the result of a very high degree of ordinary negligence
Al of the violations were properly considered to be serious. The Assess-
ment OFfice appropriately reduced the-penalties for the violations of
sections 77.701 and 75.518 because they were abated rapidly. Finally, the
Assessnment Office assigned an amount of $8 to each penalty under the cri-
terion of history of previous violations

The Assessnent Office, proposed penalties of $52, $106, $56, $90, and $98,
respectively, or a total of $402, for the five violations alleged in Docket
No. KENT 80-290. I find that the Assessment Office proposed penalties
which are well supported by the facts alleged in the citations. I find that
all five violations occurred, but nmy order will hereinafter provide for
reductions of approximately 50 percent in each of the penalties, or a tota
of $201, because of the fact that respondent is out of business and has no
assets from which penalties can be collected.

Docket No. KENT 80-324

The Proposal for Assessment of Givil Penalty filed in Docket No. KENT 80-
324 seeks assessnent of civil penalties for eight alleged violations. citation
No. 709045 alleged a violation of section 75.1725 because a shuttle car |acked
operabl e headlights and was, therefore, not maintained in a safe operating
condition, Citation No. 708057 alleged that respondent had violated section
77.1107 by failing to provide a slippage switch to stop the No. 1 belt auto-
‘matically i n case of excessive slippage: Gtation No. 708059 alleged a
viol ation of section 75.1102 for failure to provide a slippage switch for
the No. 2 belt head. Gitation No. 705980 alleged a violation of section
75.316 because respondent had not erected permanent brattices as close to
the working face as is required. Citation No. 707996 al leged a viol ation of
section 75.400 because respondent had allowed |o0ose coal, float coal dust,
oi |l cans, and paper boxes to accunulate for a distance of about 1200 feet in
the No. 4 entry and adjoining crosscuts. Citation No. 707997 alleged a vio-
lation of section 75.200 because respondent had failed to provide additiona
supports in an area which was 28 feet wide. Citation No. 725317 alleged a
violation of section 75.1710-1 because respondent had failed to provide a




cab or canopy for a shuttle car being used in 60-inch coal. Gitation No.
725318 alleged a second violation of section 75.1710-1 because respondent
had failed to provide a canopy for its other shuttle car being used in 60-
inch coal

The Assessnment Office considered that all of the eight violations
were the result of ordinary negligence. Al of the violations were consid-
ered to be serious or very serious. Respondent was given no credit for
rapi d abatenent and the Subsequent Action sheets show that no extraordinary
effort was nmade to abate any of the violations. Finally, the Assessnent
Ofice assigned $8 to each penalty under the criterion of history of previous
viol ations.

| find that all eight violations occurred and that the Assessment O fice

proposed penal ties which are supported by the conditions described in each

of the citations. The penalties proposed by the Assessment Ofice were

$78, $44, $150, $114, $225, $106, $90, and $90, respectively, or a total of
$897, for the eight violations discussed above. M order will hereinafter
reduce the penalties by approximately 50 percent to a total of $449 because
of the fact that respondent is out of business and has no assets from which
penal ties can be collected

Docket No. KENT 80-325

The Proposal for Assessment of Civil Penalty filed in Docket No. KENT 80-

325 alleged occurrence of seven violations. Gtation No. 708054 alleged a
violation of section 75.1710-1 because a canopy had not been installed on a
cutting machine being used in 60-inch coal. Gtation No. 708056 alleged’

a violation of section 75.1710-1 because a canopy had not been installed on

a shuttle car being used in 60-inch coal. Citation No. 709043 alleged a vio-
| ation of section 75.313 because the nethane nmonitor on the |oading machine
was not in operable condition. Gtation No. 707989 alleged a violation of
section 75.1725 because from 30 to 40 bottomrollers on the No. 2 conveyor
belt were stuck. Citation No. 707998 alleged a violation of section 75-1710-|
because the canopy had been removed fromthe |oading nachine; the violation
was abated by renoval of the cutting machine fromnmine property. Citation
No. 726231 alleged a violation of section 75.1100-1(b) because respondent

had failed to provide a waterline for firefighting purposes along the con-
veyor belt for a distance of about 800 feet. Citation No. 726234 alleged
aviolation of section 75.326. because air being used to ventilate the Nos. 1
and 2 conveyor belts was traveling in reverse direction, the condition being
the result of adverse roof conditions and water seepage.

The Assessment Office found that all of the violations were the result
of ordinary negligence and that all of them were serious or noderately serious

The Assessment Office appropriately reduced no penalties because of respondent's

having shown a rapid effort to achieve conpliance. The Subsequent Action
sheets show that no extraordinary effort was nade to achi eve conpliance in
any case. Finally, the Assessment Ofice assigned $8 to each penalty under
the criterion of respondent's history of previous violations. The Assessnent
O fice proposed penalties of $90, $90, $44, $52, $78, $72, and $150, respec-
tively, or atotal of $576, for the seven violations.
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It should be noted that Ctation No. 726231 incorrectly alleged a vio-
lation of section 75.1100-1(b). That subsection refers to portable water
cars, Whereas the condition described in the citation was that respondent
had failed to provide a waterline along a conveyor belt. A waterline is
required by section 75.1100-2(b). Inasmuch as the Subsequent Action sheet
termnating the citation shows that respondent did provide a waterline,
there is no doubt but that respondent was aware of the section of the regu-
lations with which it was required to conply. The Commission held'in
Jim Walter Resources, Inc., 1 FMSHRC 1827 (1979), that a citation should
not be vacated sinply for failure to show the exact section of the regul a-
tions which has been violated, so long as the citation is sufficiently spe-
cific to explain to the operator the condition which is considered to be
hazar dous and whi ch needs to be corrected. Therefore, ny order in this
proceeding will amend Citation No. 726231 to cite a violation of section
75.1100-2(b) instead of section 75.1100-1(b). M order will also amend the
Proposal for Assessment of Civil Penalty so as to allege a violation of
section 75.1100-2(b) and will assess a penalty for a violation of section
75.1100-2(b) instead of a penalty for a violation of section 75.1100-1(b).

| find, after making the correction discussed in the preceding para-
graph, that all seven violations occurred and that the Assessnent Cffice
proposed appropriate penalties in each instance. M order will hereinafter
assess total penalties of $238 which are 50 percent |ess than those proposed
by the Assessment Office because of the fact that respondent is out of
busi ness and has no assets fromwhich penalties can be collected.

Docket No. KENT 80-329

The Proposal for Assessnent of Civil Penalty filed in Docket No. KENT 80-
329 seeks assessnent of civil penalties for two alleged violations of section
75.200. The first violation was alleged in Citation No. 726230 which stated
that respondent had failed to followits roof-control plan by not installing
straps or crossbars for a distance of about 60 feet. The second violation
of section 75.200 was cited in Order of Wthdrawal No. 726235 issued under
t he i mm nent -danger provisions, or section 107(a), of the Act. The violation
alleged in the order was that respondent had renoved seven cuts of coal from
the Nos. 4 and 5 pillar blocks and had installed only four breaker posts,
whereas the roof-control plan requires installation of eight breaker posts
and a row of line tinbers installed on 4-foot centers.

The Assessnent Ofice found that the first violation of section 75.200
was the result of ordinary negligence, that it was noderately serious, and
proposed a penalty of §98. The Assessnent Office found that the second
violation of section 75.200 was the result of gross negligence, was very
serious, and proposed a penalty of $445

| find that both violations of section 75.200 occurred and that the
Assessnment Office appropriately evaluated the criteria in proposing the
total penalties of $543 described above. M order will hereinafter reduce
the proposed penalties to $272, or by about 50 perdent, because respondent
I's no longer in business and has no assets fromwhich penalties can be
col I ected.
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VWHEREFORE, for the reasons hereinbefore given, it is ordered:

(A) The Proposal for Assessment of Cvil Penalty filed in Docket No.
KENT 80-325 is amended to show that it seeks a penalty for a violation of
30 CF.R § 75.1100-2(b) instead of 30 CF.R § 75.1100-1(b) and Gtation
No; 726231 is anended to show that it alleges a violation of 30 CF.R

§ 75.1100-2(b) instead of 30" C.F.R § 75.1100-1(b).

(B) Wthin 30 days fromthe date of this decision, respondent shall
pay civil penalties totaling $1,332.00. The penalties assessed herein

are allocated to the respective violations as fol | ows:

Docket No. KENT 80-239

Gtation No. 708127 9/19/79 § 75.301 ......................
Gtation No. 708128 9/19/79 § 75.1707 .....................
Gtation No. 707945 9/24/79 § 75.200 ....... ... ... ... ....
Gtation No. 707946 9/24/79 § 75.604(a) ...................
Total Penalties Assessed in Docket No. KENT 80-289 ........

Docket No. KENT 80-290

Gtation No. 725312 1/28/80 § 77.701 ... ..................
Gtation No. 725313 1/28/80 § 77.506 ......................
Citation No. 725314 1/29/80 § 75.902 ......................
Ctation No. 725315 1/29/80 § 75~1722 .....................
Gtation No. 725316 1/29/80 § 75.518 ......................
Total Penalties Assessed in Docket No. KENT 80-290 ........

Docket No. KENT 80-324

Gtation No. 709045 10/12/79 § 75.1725 .. .. ................
Gtation No. 708057 10/16/79 § 77.1107 ....................
Gtation No. 708059 10/16/79 § 75.1102 ....................
Citation No. 705980 1/3/80 § 75.316 ............ ... ........
Citation No. 707996 1/29/80 § 75.400 ......................
Ctation No. 707997 1/29/79 § 75.200 ......................
Citation No. 725317 1/29/30 § 75.1710-1 ................... ‘
Gtation No. 725318 1/29/80 § 75.1710-1 ...................
Total Penalties Assessed in Docket No. KENT 80-324 ........

Docket No. KENT 80-325

Citation No. 708054 10/12/79 § 75.1710-1 ..................
Ctation No. 708056 10/12/79 § 75.1710-1 ..................
Ctation No. 709043 10/12/79 § 75.313 ... ... ... .. ... .......
Ctation No. 707989 10/17/79 § 7.5.1725 ... ... ... ... .......
Citation No. 707998 1/29/80 § 75.1710-1 ...................
Ctation No. 726231 5/5/80 § 75.1100-2(b) .................
Ctation No. 726234 5/6/80 § 75.326 .............c0cuvun...
Total Penalties Assessed in Docket No. KENT 80-325 ........
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Docket No. RENT 80-329

Citation No. 726230 5/5/80 § 75.200 . ... ..... . . . . . . . . . ... .. $ 49.00
Order No. 726235 5/12/80 § 75.200 ........... ... .. ........ 223. 00
Total Penalties Assessed in Docket No. KENT 80-329 ........ $— 272.00

Total G vil Penalties Assessed in This Proceeding . . . . . . . . . $1,332.00

Rlchard C Steffey ‘?—é;?

Adm ni strative Law Judge
(Phone: 703- 756- 6225) :

Distribution:
Darryl:A. Stewart, Attorney, Ofice of the Solicitor, U'S. Departnent
of Labor, Room 280, U.S. Courthouse, 801 Broadway, Nashville, TN
37203 (Oert|f| ed Mai 1)

Charles E. Lowe, Esg., Attorney for Big Three Coal Conp anr Love,
Lowe & Stanper, P.O Box 69, Pikeville, KY 41501 (Certified I\/a|l

1629




